
Council Meeting Regular July 22, 2013 

The Regular Council Meeting was called to order by Mayor Bruce Armstrong at 7:01 
p.m. in the Haysville Municipal Building, 200 West Grand Avenue.

Roll was taken by Recording Secretary Jessica Chilcote: Crum here, Benner here, Ewert 
here, Kanaga here, Kessler here, Rardin here, Konkel here, and Pierce here.

Pastor Elizabeth Cummings of Resurrection Lutheran Church led everyone in prayer.  

Mayor Bruce Armstrong led everyone present in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Under Presentation and Approval of Minutes, Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented for 
approval the Minutes of July 8, 2013. 

Motion by Konkel- Second by Pierce 
Mr. Mayor, I move that we approve the minutes of July 8, 2013 council meeting as 
presented.    
Crum yea, Benner yea, Ewert abstain, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, 
Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 

Under Citizens to be Heard, Mayor Bruce Armstrong introduced the Sedgwick County 
Fire Department. 

Lieutenant Nick Becker stated in the month of June, Station 34 ran 204 alarms, with 162 
in Haysville city limits and broke down as follows: 97 EMS medical calls, 26 lines down/ 
storm damage, 3 grass fires, 2 trash fires, 1 traffic accident and no structure fires.  Becker 
also stated the remaining calls were either false calls or cancelled en route. Becker 
advised the new station will have footings poured shortly and should be done by April of 
2014.  Becker stated the Sedgwick County Fire Department has been doing inspections 
for the last three months which are nearly completed.  Becker also stated they do blood 
pressure checks the first and third Wednesday of the month at Peachtree Towers and 
Main Street Place.  Becker advised the Sedgwick County Fire Department will begin 
doing hydrant testing soon, and are looking for a more conservative way to do it.  

There were no Approval of Licenses and Bonds.

There were no Introduction of Ordinances and Resolutions. 

Under Notices and Communications, Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked for Governing Body 
Announcements.

Councilperson Pat Ewert stated that commodities will be handed out Wednesday, July 24 
at the Senior Center from 1:00 to 3:00 pm. 

Councilperson Steve Crum stated that the Haysville Community Library will be having a 
new event this Saturday, a read-in called Pack the Library, which will have activities for 



Regular Council Meeting 

July 22, 2013 

Page 2

older people, teens and young kids including games and prizes.  Crum reported that the 
library computers sustained damage during the recent storm and they will be unavailable 
for use on Saturday for repairs.  Crum stated there would also be an ice cream social 
following the read in, at 6:30 p.m. Crum also stated Haysville Healthy Habits would 
provide fruit at National Night Out on August 8.

Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Thank You card from Joy Cosby for her retirement 
party. 

There was no Old Business 

Under Other Business, Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Public Hearing for Vacation 
Request-Complete Access Control, 7150 S. Meridian.  Mayor Armstrong advised the 
public hearing was formally open and asked staff to present information regarding the 
case.

Planning/Community Relations Coordinator Jeana Morgan stated the property in question 
was the site for the new Kwik Shop.  Morgan advised the applicant requested to vacate 
425 feet of complete access control. Morgan stated when the lot was split for the church, 
the church was given one entrance and one entrance remained for the lot in question.   
Morgan advised the applicant is requesting the vacation in order to put a second entrance 
along the Meridian side of the location.  Morgan stated their original request was for the 
full 425 feet but had been revised to include the north 80 feet of their property as per the 
recommendation from the Planning Commission meeting held on July 11. Councilperson 
Seth Konkel asked if the 80 feet would meet the needs of the applicant.  Morgan advised 
they were proposing two entrances, one of which would be a right in, right out near the 
intersection of Grand and Meridian, and the second entrance was approximately 420 feet 
up from the intersection and would be a full movement entrance.  Morgan stated they are 
all consistent with the recommendation of the South Meridian Corridor Plan as far as 
spacing and accessibility. Councilperson Steve Crum asked if the City would do a traffic 
study. Morgan advised there was no need for a traffic study at this time.  

Mayor Bruce Armstrong opened the matter up for public comment.  No comments were 
made and the public comment section was closed.

Mayor Bruce Armstrong opened the matter up for Council comments.  Councilperson 
Steve Crum asked if the proposed entrance was near the entrance of the church or any 
other business.  Planning/Community Relations Coordinator Jeana Morgan advised that 
the lot was across from the vacant lot south of the Haysville Family Med Center.  Morgan 
advised it was not in conflict with the other entrances in the area.  Morgan stated when 
future road improvements were done they called for a raised median which would have 
the same effect as the right in right out access.  Morgan also stated the property owners 
were notified and none protested. 

Motion by Konkel- Second by Rardin 



Regular Council Meeting 

July 22, 2013 

Page 3

Mr. Mayor, I move we approve the vacation request as presented. 
Crum yea, Benner yea, Ewert yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, 
Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 

Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented a Consideration of Approval of Publication of Notice 
of Hearing of the 2014 Budget. 

Chief Administrative Officer Will Black advised of one change to the 2014 budget  Black 
stated the item in the Council packet is correct, but the one they saw last week had one 
change on the transfers line for 2014. Black advised the transfers line was increased by 
$15,000.00 to match what was in the detail, and the net expenditures were decreased by 
that same $15,000.00 to match the detail Council received last week.  Black stated the 
only place it was incorrect was in the summary and has now been corrected.  

Motion by Konkel- Second by Rardin 
Mr. Mayor, if there are no other questions, I move we approve the Notice for Publishing 
the Budget and establishing a hearing. 
Crum yea, Benner yea, Ewert yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, 
Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 

Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented the Designation of Voting Representative & Alternate 
to WAMPO TPB 

Mayor Bruce Armstrong advised WAMPO requested an elected official be the 
representative and the alternate can be someone from staff.  Mayor Armstrong stated he 
would like to designate himself the representative, with Will Black as the alternate. 

Motion by Konkel- Second by Rardin 
Mr. Mayor, if there are no other questions, I move we approve the Mayor as the voting 
member and Will Black as the alternate to WAMPO TPB, with the stipulation that 
minutes or a report come back on a regular basis to Council. 
Crum yea, Benner yea, Ewert yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, 
Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 

Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked for Department Reports. 

Chief Administrative Officer Will Black had nothing to report.  

City Clerk Janie Cox reminded Council of the city-wide garage sale on August 10 and 11. 
Cox advised  permits could be purchased at the Haysville Library.  Cox stated no garage 
sale permits would be available for purchase on August 9. 



Regular Council Meeting 

July 22, 2013 

Page 4

Chief of Police Jeff Whitfield stated there would be a Refuse to be a Victim class on 
Thursday, July 25 from 6:00 to 10:00 p.m. in the court room.  Whitfield advised there 
was still space available in the class and citizens can sign up on-line or that day in person. 
Whitfield announced the annual National Night Out, would be on  August 8 from 6:00 to 
8:00 p.m., and is free of charge. Whitfield advised there would be food, demonstrations 
by the police dog , dunk tank, and other activities. Whitfield invited everyone to attend.
Whitfield stated there would be a women’s self defense class on August 10 from 8:00 
a.m. and will run all day.  Whitfield advised anyone interested to contact Officer 
Kielhorn for more information or to sign up. 

Public Works Director Randy Dorner passed out a map of the storm limb pick up route to 
Council members.  Dorner advised after the storm on June 27, Public Works employees 
have been picking up limbs. Dorner stated everything east of the tracks except for 
Timbercreek has been completed.  Dorner advised Timbercreek’s brush was all piled in a 
vacant lot so they have left it there to focus on the limbs in citizens’ yards.  Dorner stated 
there is another truck running to speed up the process and he hopes to be completed in the 
next couple of weeks.  Dorner advised the route for cleanup began in Ward I, followed by 
Ward II, then they went into Ward’s Fourth, got the area by the turnpike and then back 
into Wards III and IV.  Dorner advised there is a chipping crew working for four hours 
every morning.  Dorner stated the gas company has begun installing the gas line on East 
Grand.  Dorner advised they will be closing Delos for a short time on Thursday or Friday 
in order to install the pipe. Dorner stated the Police Department will be notified so 911 
can be made aware in order to allow for alternate routes.  Councilperson Mike Kanaga 
verified that when the Delos closing happened it would not affect Grand; Dorner 
confirmed that Grand would not be affected. 

Recreation Director Georgie Carter made a correction to Police Chief Whitfield’s report 
regarding National Night Out, stating  it would be on Tuesday August 6, not the 8th.
Carter advised  Saturday, July 27, Haysville PRIDE would hold a free pool day and 
would be open from 1:00 to 6:30 pm, admission will be free and they usually have free 
concession items too.  Carter stated enrollment for fall latchkey has begun, as well as
youth soccer sign-ups for ages 4 to 6th grade.  Carter advised the pool will close on 
Sunday, August 11.   

There were no Appointments.

There were no Off Agenda Citizens to be heard.

There was no Executive Session.

Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented the Bills to be Paid for the Last Half of July.   

Motion by Ewert-Second by Konkel 
I move that we pay the last half of the bills for July.  



Regular Council Meeting 

July 22, 2013 

Page 5

Crum yea, Benner yea, Ewert yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, 
Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 

There was nothing under the Consent Agenda.

Under Council Items, Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked for any Council concerns.  

Councilperson Steve Crum stated the pond in Riggs Park was on the list for blue-green 
algae again.  Crum advised the hot summer and lack of rain last year contributed to its 
growth last year, but asked if something had changed because he didn’t recall issues with 
blue-green algae in the past. Crum asked if there was a problem with the circulation, or if 
there was a way to correct the issue. Public Works Director Randy Dorner stated  the 
regulations had become more strictly monitored, and blue-green algae has been around a 
while.  Dorner stated the fertilizer and lawn chemicals that run into the pond can 
contribute to its growth, as can warmer temperatures.  Dorner advised only a small 
portion of the pond had been affected.  Crum asked if the City was doing everything they 
could to prevent it.  Dorner stated that aerators had been installed and that the problem is 
much smaller than in years past.  Crum urged Dorner to do all he can to be kept off the 
list.  Councilperson Keith Pierce agreed with Crum and asked about Timberlane North 
drainage and whether or not that standing water in the culvert could be a contributing 
factor to the algae in the pond.  Pierce stated he wondered if the ditch had been tested.  
Dorner advised that this had been considered but according to KDHE it is bred in the 
pond.  Dorner offered to follow up with KDHE to see if there are any new ideas 
regarding the situation.  Dorner stressed there is quite a bit of chemical run-off that could 
be feeding the algae, and pointed out many areas on the map that drain into the pond.  
Pierce urged Dorner to readdress the issue.  Mayor Bruce Armstrong asked if other ponds 
in Haysville were tested, to which Dorner replied no.  Dorner advised that the other 
ponds do not get as much runoff as Riggs pond, so they have less risk of developing the 
algae.  Dorner advised he would have PEC check for recommendations.

Mayor Bruce Armstrong noted there are several positions on the Planning Commission 
open and encouraged Council to mention if they knew anyone who was interested. Mayor 
Armstrong advised one position is in Ward I, one is in Ward IV, and two are in the Area 
of Influence.

Mayor Bruce Armstrong introduced Council Action Request Updates. 

Chief Administrative Officer Will Black stated the request on Fager and Alexander 
submitted by Councilperson Keith Pierce had been looked at. Black advised the 
homeowner had been contacted and told to either trim or remove the bush within five 
days, which would be by the 24th of July. 

Mayor Bruce Armstrong presented for approval Adjournment. 



Regular Council Meeting 

July 22, 2013 

Page 6

Motion by Pierce-Second by Konkel 
Mr. Mayor and Council, I move that we adjourn tonight’s meeting.    
Crum yea, Benner yea, Ewert yea, Kanaga yea, Kessler yea, Rardin yea, Konkel yea, 
Pierce yea.  
Motion declared carried. 

The Regular Council Meeting adjourned at 7:33 p.m. 

_________________________________
Janie Cox, City Clerk 


